NNC08215212J
Draft Request For Proposal Comments

Page 1 of 9

November 19, 2007

Science and Space Exploration Technology Support (SSETS)
NASA Response to Draft RFP (DRFP) Comments

NNC08215212J

1. Government Furnished Equipment

The list of installation-accountable property and services (and the equipment listed in attachment J) is useful and compatible with the scope of the work described in Section C and the sample tasks but there are some issues that require clarification:
(i) The scope of the work described in the SOW in Section C will require access to the GRC network. Will ODIN seats be provided to all research and administrative staff and will laptop or other computers, purchased through the contract, be provided with NAD seats? In general, given the evolutionary nature of the work outlined in the SOW it would be helpful if a clearer indication of how assignment of ODIN seats to each staff member and assignment of NADs in specific cases will be handled. 

Answer:  The Government will provide Outsourcing Desktop Initiative for NASA (ODIN) and Network Attached Device (NAD) seats as necessary for on-site personnel.  These costs do not need to be included in the proposal.  Note:  SOW is the acronym for Statement of Work.
 (ii) Specialized software (e.g., Fluent, Comsol, Fidap, etc., labview) used on GRC computers that will be needed for many of the tasks (simulation and data analysis) described in the SOW and in the sample tasks require licenses that must be renewed annually. Clarification is needed as to whether the software and annual licensing will be provided.

Answer:  The offeror shall price software/licensing that they believe is needed for the tasks.  The Government reserves the right to provide these items as Government Furnished Equipment (GFE).

(iii) High performance computers (HPCs) dedicated to the types of simulation described in the SOW and sample tasks will require administration. Will administration of HPCs be provided by NASA or through the contract?

Answer:  The Government will provide the administration of the HPC’s necessary to perform the tasks.

(iv) Machine shop and fabrication costs: will machine shop costs and other fabrication costs (purchase of parts, etc.) that arise in connection with experiment development, breadboards, etc., be handled through a WBS charge code or will these costs be charged to the contract? 
Answer:  The Government will provide an internal charge code (Work Breakdown Structure, or WBS) for fabrication costs necessary to perform the sample tasks in the RFP.

(v) In Attachments A, B, and C, under the heading “Government-Furnished Property”, there is the general statement, “Government will provide facilities and equipment necessary to perform the task most likely at GRC….” We request more clarification/detail on Government-furnished equipment for these three Sample Tasks – we request specifics on what government will provide, for example a list of equipment, facilities (such as that provided in Attachment D) or materials for fabrication and fabrication costs etc., and when equipment or materials and fabrication costs outside would be reimbursable costs to the contract.  This will enable more accurate costing.

Answer:  The contractor shall list required facilities and equipment necessary to perform the sample tasks to demonstrate their understanding of the task.  However, the contractor need not price them.

2. Section C Statement of Work and Section M.3 Mission Suitability Factor

(i)
In Section M.1 (a) (1) (pg 60) states: “This provision is intended to explain the rationale and precise criteria by which proposals will be assessed by the evaluation team. Offerors are to prepare proposals with these criteria in mind … in order to assist the team in determining the relative merit of proposals in relation to the requirements as defined in Section C….” However, in Section M.2 Evaluation Factors, M.3 Mission Suitability Factors (Volume I), only “Understanding the Approach Sample Tasks” is listed as a technical evaluation subfactor. Understanding the Approach to Section C is not listed. Since the sample tasks only reflect a subset of the scope of work in Section C and do not map onto, for example, Sections C.2.4 and C.2.5, and broader aspects of the scope of C.2.1-2.3, how will the contractors capabilities in these technical areas be assessed?
Answer:  This is correct.  The contractor will be evaluated on the response to the sample tasks and the proposed transition plan, key personnel and other information provided in the proposal will be used to evaluate the contractor’s ability to address the broader aspects of the scope covered in Section C.

(ii)
We have concerns over our understanding of the proposal evaluation process specifically regarding the wording / applicability of Section M.3 "Mission Suitability Factor”. A better understanding of how our response will be evaluated and scored using this Factor is critical to our proceeding to prepare a proposal since, per M.6.2, it is the most important Factor in your evaluation process. On page 60 it is stated that this Factor will be used to evaluate our approach to both the Statement of Work (SOW) and the Sample Tasks. We understand that the Sample Tasks represent only potential tasks to be assigned within the total contract scope as described in the SOW.  Furthermore, the estimated Contract Value leads us to believe that the four Sample Tasks, or four similar representative tasks, will probably represent a very limited portion of the work anticipated through the life of the subject Contract.

Answer:  The contractor will be evaluated on the response to the sample tasks and the proposed transition plan, key personnel and other information provided in the proposal will be used to evaluate the contractor’s ability to address the broader aspects of the scope covered in Section C.

(iii)
It appears to us that the Mission Suitability Factors and Subfactors are focused almost exclusively on our responses to the Sample Tasks and will result in an evaluation based only on the limited skills and capabilities necessary to perform those tasks.  As we understand it, the evaluation process for mission suitability described in Section M.3 will not enable an accurate evaluation of our capabilities to cost effectively and successfully address the full breadth and scope of the Technical Areas described in the SOW (Section C, pages 9-13).  For instance, the sample tasks do cover parts of Technical areas 2.1, 2.2, and 2.3, but do not cover 2.4 or 2.5 (Space and Earth Science Research and Program Development). Clarification would be extremely helpful on how the evaluation process will assess a proposer's ability to provide the full set of requisite skills, capabilities, and experience indicated in the broader technical scope discussed in Section C.

Answer:  Contractor provided information on management approach and key personnel will be used along with understanding of the approach to sample tasks.

3. Section C Statement of Work, Section M.3 (iv) (Cost Management), and Section M.4 (Cost Factor)
There is a concern over how the cost information in our response to the Sample Tasks will be used to assess the reasonableness and realism of our estimated costs to address the full scope of tasks described in the SOW and implied by the total estimated contract value. These concerns arise because:

(i)
The limited skill levels and accompanying labor categories/rates necessary to perform the work in the Sample Tasks should not and cannot be used to extrapolate estimated costs for many of the other tasks anticipated from the SOW.

Answer:  This is correct.  The contractor will be evaluated on their understanding of the implementation approach for the sample tasks.

(ii)
The management, administrative, and infrastructure burdens applied to the Sample Task estimates of labor hours will be highly dependent on the assumptions used regarding the total and annual scope of work approved under the subject contract. Clear instructions are needed on what such assumptions should be used in our response.

Based on the concerns stated in 2 and 3, it would seem that the most valuable and useful responses to the subject RFP would contain both:

· technical, cost, management, etc.,  information that addresses the full scope of anticipated work over the projected lifetime of the contract

· similar but more detailed information (as requested in the Draft RFP) for each of the Sample Tasks. To request and evaluate such information from offerors would require additional direction and guidance in the final RFP.
Answer:  The contractor shall clearly note assumptions made in its cost estimates.

4. Section G.3 (b), Pg. 17: It is requested that the variance explanation be consistent with the 10% threshold required to provide a revised estimate at completion per task.
Answer:  No, this section will remain unchanged.  The variance explanation will remain at 5%, which is consistent with our internal reporting requirement.  
5. Section G.3 d) , Pg. 17: – If the NF 533 Reports are produced from a commercial government contractor software such as Costpoint, which integrates financial, accounting and contractual reporting to compile the 533 Reports.  Would the government accept an alternative reporting process outside of Excel?   This format has been used successfully on several other NASA Contracts to produce both the 533Q and the 533M.
Answer:  Most commercial software has the capability of generating reports in Excel.  We want to be able to copy values from the NF 533s for our internal reporting purposes. If the Excel reports do not contain the formulas used in the calculations, we will accept a narrative explanation.
6. Section G.9 (1), Pg. 22: Equipment list is Attachment “H” not “J”.

Answer:  The equipment list should be Section J, not Attachment J.  The RFP will be corrected.

7. Section H.5 (c), Pg. 24: 14 calendar days would be a more suitable timeframe to respond to task after receipt of the CO’s request.  As directed under other task ordered contracts, 14 calendar days has been the acceptable norm, which gives contractors and subcontractors time to prepare an appropriate response.
Answer:  Agreed.  We will revise the contractor response date to fourteen (14) calendar days.
8. Section I.39 52.227-14, Rights In Data – General, Pg. 30: It is requested that Alternate IV with the basic clause 52.227-14 (Rights in Data) is included in the contract. Including the clause with its Alt. IV will give the contractor the ability to flow down the applicable Alt. IV to its academic subcontractors.  This will allow the subcontractors to more effectively perform the required research, by being able to establish claim to copyright and to reduce the administrative burden that would be imposed without the Alternate IV provision.
Answer:  No, this section will remain unchanged.  We do not wish to grant blanket permission for the contractor to establish claim to copyright subsisting in all data first produced without further request being made by the contractor.
9. Section I.72, Pg. 36: If the selected contractor will be on-site at the NASA Center, can the staff be covered under the NASA Glenn Research Center IT Security Plan as opposed to preparing a new plan?  All staff working on the contract would complete the annual IT Security Training provided by NASA.

Answer:  No, the contractor is required to have its own Information Technology (IT) security plan. The contractor can include references to NASA’s IT security plan where appropriate.
10. M.3.2(i), Pg. 61: Key Personnel:
(i)
Are resumes included in this section? 

Answer:  Yes.

(ii)
Are there page limits for each Key Personnel resume? 
Answer:  There is no page limit for each Key Personnel resume, but the resumes are included in the overall Mission Suitability Volume proposal page limit.

(iii)
Can resumes for Key Personnel be included in an appendix to the Mission Suitability Volume?
Answer:  Yes, the resumes for Key Personnel may be included in an appendix to the Mission Suitability Volume, and will be counted against the proposal page limit.

11.  L.10.(a) Administrative Requirements – Volume IV, Pgs. 52-53:

(i)
The DRFP places the proposal cover letter in Volume IV. Please confirm.

Answer:  See answer to Question 11, item (ii).

(ii)
Would it be possible that the Volume numbers are revised so that they follow this layout: Volume I – Administrative Requirements (therefore placing the Cover Letter at the beginning of this volume with a copy contained in each volume), Volume II – Mission Suitability, Volume III – Past Performance, Volume IV – Cost.

Answer:  Agreed in part.  We will revise the volume numbers; however, we will use a different numbering requirement in order to comply with the procurement templates.  The RFP will be revised.  The proposal cover letter will be included in Volume I – Offer.  The proposal volumes will be numbered as follows:
Volume I – Offer
Volume II – Mission Suitability
Volume III – Cost
Volume IV – Past Performance
(iii)
The cover letter is to be on letterhead and is to include the information requested in (a) through (j). Are these items to be on letterhead also?

Answer:  The cover letter and any items requested under Administrative Requirements do not need to be on company letterhead.  The RFP will be revised. 

(iv)
(a)(4) States: “Verification that the offeror is Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) compliant. The offeror should be listed on the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP) National Pre-award Registry …” On investigating how we would be listed on this registry, we were informed that NASA would have to initiate the request for an EEO audit. Please advise how we would provide verification in this case?
Answer:  The RFP will be revised to add, “The offeror must notify the Government if their organization is not listed on the OFCCP National Pre-Award Registry, and will require an EEO compliance review if selected.”

12. L.5(a)(c)(2), Pgs. 47 and 49: 
(i)
Are the first page of the proposal and the title page one and the same?

Answer:  Yes.

13. L.5(2), Pg. 49: Required Title Page Legend: 
(i)
“This proposal includes data ….. The data subject to this restriction are contained in sheets (insert numbers or other identification of sheets); and …” This legend is incomplete; was there supposed to be more?

Answer:  The referenced citation is from FAR 52.215-1, “Instructions to Offerors—Competitive Acquisition (June 2004).”  When preparing the title page for the proposal, replace the semi-colon with a period, and delete “and.”
14. L.10 (b)(1), Pg. 54: Are the four volumes to be bound separately? Would it be acceptable that the Mission Suitability Volume and the Past Performance Volumes are bound together? 

Answer:  Yes, the four volumes shall be bound separately.  The Mission Suitability Volume and the Past Performance Volumes shall not be bound together.

15. L.10(b)(4) and (5), Pgs. 54-55: There are two POCs cited for the Safety and Health Plan and for the Environmental Management Plan – are these to be two separate plans? It seems that throughout the DRFP, they are referred to as one plan. Please clarify.

Answer:  Yes, there are two separate plans, Safety and Health Plan, and Environmental Management Plan.  The RFP will be revised to refer to them as two separate plans.

16. L.14.1852.231-71, Determination of Compensation Reasonableness, (a), Pgs. 58-59: 
(i)
States: “The proposal shall include a total compensation plan.” Should this plan, along with any required by a subcontractor based on the limits specified, be included in Volume IV, Administrative Requirements or in the Cost Volume?
Answer:  The total compensation plan shall be included in the Mission Suitability Volume.  The RFP will be revised to include that requirement.  The compensation plan will not be included in the Mission Suitability proposal page count.
(ii)
If subcontractors are proposed, what is the per subcontract cost threshold that would require inclusion of a full (cost) proposal by that subcontractor?

Answer:  The total subcontract cost threshold that would require inclusion of a full cost proposal by each subcontractor would be the lesser of $50,000 or 25% of the total value of each task.

17. L.11(f), Pg. 57: States: States: “Smaller than 12-point font type may be used in figures or charts within the written proposals, as long as the figure or chart does not consist primarily of text.” For easy distinction between text and figure captions, would you consider allowing 10-point font for ALL figures, tables, and charts regardless of whether they consist primarily of text or not?
Answer:  No.  The 12-point font type is required under NFS 1852.215-81, paragraph (b).  We added paragraph (f) to allow for smaller than 12-point font type for figures and charts primarily as a courtesy to the offeror.
18.
Page 58, section L.14 (c): The draft solicitation contains references that are consistent with a Service Contract, for example, this section states, “The offeror shall include the rationale for any conformance procedures used or those Service Contract Act employees proposed that do not fall within the scope of any classification listed in the applicable wage determination.”  However, prevailing wage determinations were not provided (as would be the case for a service contract solicitation), nor were any Specific Service Contract Act (SCA) reporting requirements cited.  Is it NASA’s intent that this contract be awarded as a service contract?

We recommend that any contract resulting from this solicitation not be awarded as a service contract.  The Indefinite Delivery/Indefinite Quantity contract of the recently awarded Intelligent Systems Research and Development Services (NNA07BB97C) and the recent NIAC contract (NAS5-03110) are two relevant examples of NASA-funded research contracts that were not awarded as Service Contracts and are free of SCA requirements.  We believe that a service contract would be inconsistent with the nature of SSETS.
Answer:  The solicitation does not contain a requirement for the offeror to propose using Service Contract Act employees.  However, if an offeror proposes employees that are subject to the Service Contract Act, and provides valid reasons for doing so, the resultant contract will include the appropriate clauses.   
19.  M.3.2(vii) and (viii), Pg. 63: Do the Intellectual Property and Risk Mitigation Plan sections count against the Mission Suitability page count?

Answer:  The Intellectual Property Plan will not count against the Mission Suitability page count.  The Risk Mitigation Plan will count against the Mission Suitability page count.
20. M.3.3, Pg. 63: The DFRP states, “The offeror will be required to submit a Safety, Health, and Environmental Management Plan at a high overview level.” Please clarify what high overview level means.

Answer:  The RFP will be revised to exclude “at a high overview level.”  The Safety and Health Plan, and Environmental Management Plan do not have a proposal page limit.
21. M.4, Pg. 64 – Cost Factor (Volume II): 

(i)
The solicitation requires that four sample technical task orders (Attachments A through D) be priced for purposes of evaluating the offerors proposed costs.  Based on the additional management and administrative support necessary to manage a task order contract, we recommend that NASA include in the solicitation an additional Management Task Order which would capture each offeror’s proposed management and administrative costs to support this contract based on a total estimated value of $17.5M.  
Answer:  Agreed.  We will include a Management Task Order.  This task order will be awarded with the contract.
(ii)
Additionally, the establishment of a separate and distinct Management Task Order would create a mechanism for the successful offeror, immediately upon award, to respond to the technical task order plans as they are requested by the NASA Contracting Officer.  This is a critical capability in order to avoid any disruption to continued research efforts that will be transitioned from the current cooperative agreement to the new contract.

Answer:  See answer to Question 21, item (i).

22. M.5.a., Pg. Pg. 65: States: “The offeror shall provide information on three (3) contracts/grants/cooperative agreements performed within the past three (3) years …” Are offerors limited to only three past performance references? If offerors are allowed to present more than 3 past performance references, will the page count increase from 20?
Answer:  Yes, offerors are limited to only three past performance references.  The Past Performance proposal page limit remains the same.

23. M.5.b.4, Pg. 67: It is not stated in the DRFP whether the Past Performance Questionnaire recipients are to send these questionnaires to the CO by any specified time. Does this mean that if they sent them to the CO after the proposal due date they will still be accepted?

Answer:  The Past Performance questionnaires shall be sent to the Contracting Officer by the proposal due date.  The RFP and the past performance questionnaire will be revised.  NFS 1815.304-70(d)(3) states, “Failure . . . of the customers to submit the completed questionnaires shall not be a cause for rejection of the proposal nor shall it be reflected in the Government’s evaluation of the offeror’s past performance.”  If the Contracting Officer does not receive the Past Performance questionnaires by the proposal due date, the questionnaires will not be accepted, and will not be included in the Government’s evaluation of the offeror’s past performance.  
